QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FOR

SOLICITATION N00178-06-R-4000

Q1. Reference electronic posting of solicitation documents and page 73, Section 2.3. Can the Government make available the solicitation documents in a Microsoft Office format as the requirement is to submit a completed solicitation in such a version?

A.  A Word version of those sections of the solicitation that require fill-ins will be posted on the Seaport e homepage. 

Q2. Reference page 74, Section 3.10. Does this requirement apply only to the prime contractor or for all team members?

A.  This applies to prime contractors only.

Q3. Reference Page 75, formatting instructions. Can the Offeror present headers/footers within the 1” margin?

A.  Yes, headers can be included in the margin.

Q4. Page 75, Section 4.2, Outline. Does the solicitation require Offerors to present the same Table A in both Evaluation Factor 1: Depth and Breadth and Evaluation Factor 1: Subcontracting?

A.  Only one Table A is required per zone that is being proposed.  Depth and breadth information will include both prime contractors and team members.

Q5. Reference Page 76, cover letter, and page 67, first page. Is it the intent for the Offeror to present a “first page” (page 67 of solicitation) as well as a “cover letter” (page 76 of solicitation)? If the intent is to have only one of these documents, which instructions should the Offeror follow in preparing their response?

A.  Paragraph 5.2 on page 76 of the solicitation states that the cover letter required supercedes and replaces the “First Page” requirement referenced on page 67.

Q6. Reference Page 76, 5.2.9. Does the CCR Registration information (page 76) count as part of the 5-page limit for the cover letter (page 75)?

A.  The CCR Registration is not part of the 5-page limit.

Q7. Reference Page 77, Section 5.4.1(a) Depth and Breadth: “Experience in these functional areas may be gained from working with any of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM activities as well as other Government organizations.” May the Offeror present experience for a functional area that was performed for the Private Sector?

A.  Experience in work for private sector should not be included.  Work performed for other than Navy Virtual SYSCOM activities could be considered meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.

Q8. Reference page 77: “Offeror should provide the maximum amount of experience and expertise … for each functional area.” Is the intent of the solicitation that the Offeror presents one example for each functional area or as many examples that may apply for each, separate functional area?

A.  The maximum amount of experience for each functional area that the offeror proposes to perform.

Q9. Reference page 73, Section 2.5. Can the Government identify the contents to be included in the CD-ROM and how many CD-ROM copies Offerors are to submit?

A.  Only one copy of the CD-ROM needs to be submitted which should include your entire proposal with all attachments.

Q10.  For solicitation N00178-06-R-4000, Section J, Attachment J.4, Past Performance Information, there is a column for “Mission Areas for When Function was Performed” that refers to a website.  The website is not available, do you know if it has been changed?  If so, could you please provide the new website address?

A.  The correct website address is http://www.seaport.navy.mil/activities/mission_areas.doc and is listed in paragraph 1.2 of Section C in the solicitation.  The address in Table A will be corrected.

Q11.  Is the issued Amendment 001 to the synopsis required to be documented on the SF 33 as Amendment 001?

A.  No, only those amendments that are issued to the solicitation would need to be documented on the SF33.

Q12.  I would like to get clarification on proposal submittals from wholly

owned subsidiaries.  My company is one of many wholly owned subsidiaries that have

stand-alone cost structures/DUNS/CAGE/CCR information.  We also have

very different overhead and G&A structures and rates.  Because we are

separate companies, and how we report back to the government, we can not

share work among the wholly owned subsidiaries without going through

normal procurement procedures and establishing subcontracts

(following/meeting all FAR requirements).  This in turn doesn't provide

the best value to the government, since we will then have some mark-up.

I was at a kick-off meeting for SEAPORT for SPAWAR last year, in which

this question was posed to the contracting representative for SEAPORT -

and we were told that if you are a wholly owned subsidiaries with a

stand alone reporting/overhead structure/DUNS/CAGE that each company

could bid on the SEAPORT contract.  However, if you were a separate division or operating structure or region within one company, then you could not have the separate

divisions or operating structures or regions within the company submit

separate SEAPORT contracts (i.e. only one contract per wholly owned

subsidiary). So before we submit, I wanted to make sure that two separate wholly

owned subsidiaries with separate overhead/G&A/DUNS/CAGE can each submit

a proposal to SEAPORT.

A.  There is only one contract allowed per company, regardless of the number of subsidiaries or divisions.  In your example, only one of the wholly owned subsidiaries would be considered for receipt of award.

Q13.  On page 76 of 86, Section 5.2 Cover Letter – Item number 4 ask to for cognizant DCAA office.  Our company currently practices the policies of DCAA however, we do not have DCAA audited rates nor a assigned DCAA contact.  Our company’s plan is to have audited rates by the time any task orders are received.  Without having DCAA audited rates does this preclude us from submitting a proposal? 

A.  This does not preclude your company from submitting a proposal for consideration.

Q14.  Section 5.4.1  page 72 "all offerors are required to address all team members on the Sea Port E Contractor information registration site?  Who does this applies to?  What is it ? our team members us have not been able to  not figure out exactly what this requirement means.

A.  All prime contractors must register on the Contractor Information Registration Site.  There is a section on this site that pertains to team members.  The prime contractor needs to provide information about their team member (address, CAGE code, DUNS number, POC, type of business, etc).

Q15.  What is the most desirable way of submitting the proposal? It appears that the paper proposal (six) via regular mail is the preferred method, the new e-Commerce portal can not be used to submit this proposal?. Is electronic submission discouraged?  If not which one of the electronic options is preferred? NECO, or Fed OPS?

A.  Electronic submission of proposals is not allowed.

Q16.  Page 76, under "cover letter" item 7, what is the proposal validity date for this submission?

A.  The validity date indicates the length of time that a contract could be awarded from your proposal.

Q17.  In reference to small businesses responding to the RFP that was released on 2/24 for System Engineering and Analysis/ Advanced Technology Support (N0017806R400) if they are able to provide strong past performance in some areas but not all, should they look to team with other small businesses to cover all areas or will contracts be given in multiple areas in accordance with awardees strengths?

A.   In order to receive a “Satisfactory” rating for Technical Capability, a small business or team member must show relevant experience in at least one of the  twenty-two Functional Areas included in the Statement of Work.  It is not required that all Functional Areas be addressed.  If there is no relevant past performance, a Neutral rating will be given.

Q18.  Page 79, Section 5.6 Zone Consideration – “Presence” – reference the following sentence: 
“For the purpose of the qualification requirement, contract means “meaningful work performed” for one or more of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM sites and field activities in one or more of the Functional Areas.  An order on a GSA contract may qualify as a contract if it is relevant to the Functional Areas of the SOW.”  If a bidding company has current or past contracts with the DoD through the 8(a) program but has not done any work for NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM sites, would they still qualify to respond to this bid?

A.  Work performed for other than Navy Virtual SYSCOM activities could be considered meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.  In limited instances, work outside of DoD may be considered meaningful if it is substantively relevant to SOW and Mission Areas.

Q19.  Page 5, CLIN Table.  Should the table provided on page 5 of the solicitation be completed even though it is not referenced in ATTACHMENT J.5?   Page 76 of the solicitation indicates that asterisks in Section B should be replaced.

A.  Yes, the CLIN table on page 5 should be completed.

Q20.  Page 31, Para H.10. How is the Base Period or Previous Year in the table identified?  The method for identifying the choice is not provided.  The text “% Reduction from base period or price from previous year” appears contradictory with respect to the last sentence of H.10.A

A.   The Cost Savings applies to the periods subsequent to the base period so the base period is not included.  Therefore, the chart begins with Year 2 to demonstrate the savings that would be applied from the base period.

Q21.  Page 32, H.11 (Contractor Web page).  The solicitation requires that a copy of all Technical Instructions and Task Orders be posted on the web page.  Does the Government desire a summary of the TIs and TOs or the actual documents (which may contain proprietary information)?

A.  A copy of the actual Task Order and Technical Instruction should be posted to the web page.  Any proprietary information could be deleted.

Q22.  Pages 57 and 58, Para. 52.204-3 (d), (e) and (f).  How are the items under 52.204-3 (d), (e) and (f) to be selected?

A.   A word version of this clause will be provided which will allow for the checking of the appropriate block.

Q23.  Page 72, Para. 2.1.  Is the entire solicitation response to be submitted to the SeaPort-e Web site as well as in paper and on CD-ROM (Table A)?

A.    Paper copies of your proposal and the CD-ROM should be delivered to the address listed in Section 2.1 on page 72.  Electronic submission is not allowed.

Q24.  Paragraph 1.0 (Questions).  The solicitation suggests that the contractor reference all previous questions.  Are the answers to those earlier questions binding for solicitation N000178-06-R-4000?

A.  The reference to the previous questions that were received under the original Seaport e and the first round of Rolling Admissions was an attempt to answer the most commonly asked questions up-front and provide as much information to potential bidders as possible.  Offerors are required to notify the Seaport e Contracting Officer of any inconsistencies.

Q25.  Page 73, Para. 2.1 (CCR Information).  The CCR information is provided in two parts, a Public summary and a second more detailed summary.  Which does the Government desire?

A.  The detailed summary from CCR should be provided.

Q26.  Attachment J.2, Evaluation Criteria, Item #3. The evaluation criteria titled “Accomplishment of Guaranteed Savings Goals” appears to contradict with Paragraph H.10 which is entitled “SAVINGS CLAUSE”.   Should the word “Guaranteed” be removed from the  evaluation criteria?

A.  This refers to the Cost Savings described in Section H.10 of the solicitation.  Attachment J.2 will be corrected to reflect the correct terminology.

Q27.  Attachment J.4, page 1.  Table A requires a Government POC. If the Past Performance was as a subcontractor, should the POC provided be a POC at the  Prime Contractor?

A.  It is requested that a Government POC for the effort be provided.

Q28.  Where on the SeaPort website do we actually register and list ourselves for the SeaPort-e Contractor Information Registration site?

A.  Registration can occur at https://auction.seaport.navy.mil/SeaPort.
 

Q29.   In registering as the Prime on the SeaPort-e Contractor Information Registration site, is there a place for us to add our team members information, or do they have to individually register as well?

A.   There is a section on the registration site where the prime can include all team members being proposed. 

 

Q.30.  If we were team members (subs) in past years for Companies to qualify, has our company already been registered on the SeaPort-e information site, and if so, how can we update/edit our information to become a Prime?

A.  Your company would be registered in the portal as a team member.  You would need to register on the site as a prime contractor proposing under the Rolling Admissions.

 

Q31.  In the current solicitation, on page 75 of 86, under Evaluation Factor 1, Technical Capability, (c) subcontracting; it requests Table A plus 5 pages.  Are we required to submit a Table A for each zone submitted with Prime Functional areas as well as a separate Table A for each zone submitted with team member (sub) functional areas?  Or one(1) Table A for each zone submitted with all past performance (prime and team members) for each functional area?

A.  Only one Table A is required for each zone that is being proposed.  The information included on Table A can indicate if the information is for the prime contractor or one of its team members.

Q32.  For the column on Table A entitled Mission Area For Which Function Was Performed www.seaport.avy.mil/acitivites, if the past performance is not specifically with NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM activities, but rather, with other Government organizations, what is the best approach to completing that column?

A.  You would need to state what equivalent functional area in the Seaport e SOW that the work was similar to and provide additional information in your technical proposal.

Q33. When establishing a ceiling rate for CLIN 1000, if the highest labor category is from a subcontractor on our team, how do we submit the breakdown of the derivation of the ceiling unit price?

A.  The breakdown can be provided either in your proposal via a sealed envelope from the subcontractor or the subcontractor can elect to submit the breakdown directly to the Government at the time and place specified in Section 2.1 on page 72 of the solicitation.

Q34. Should a separate Table A be submitted for each subcontractor/team member

or should a combined team Table A be submitted for each zone to be

considered?

A.  Only one Table A needs to be submitted for each zone that is being proposed.  The Table A can reflect the mixture of the prime and team member.

Q35.  We are a small firm that provides non-technical support services to the government.  When responding to  the current rolling admissions must we provided pricing for all 72,000,000 hours under item 1000-1999?

A.  A single rate included in CLIN 1000, 4000, and 7000 will be used to establish the ceiling amount for the contract so no change will be made to the 72,000,000 hours.

Q36.  Page 73 of 86 talks to the copies to be submitted.  It says one copy with signed original, amendments, all attachments, one paper technical proposal, one paper cost proposal, cover letter, CCR registration, and subcontracting plan.  Then it says five copies of Vol. I with technical capabilities, management approach, subcontracting plan, and table A past performance.  Page 75 of 86  says Vol. I is the technical capabilities, management approach, and subcontracting plan.

Vol. II is the cost/price proposal.  Which of these is right for the submission?  Is it just a Vol. I as page 73 says or a Vol. I & II as page 75 says?

A.  Offerors must provide one copy of the following documents:  the signed original proposal with any amendment change pages; all attachments; one paper technical proposal, one paper cost proposal; one cover letter; CCR Registration Information; and Subcontracting Plan (if applicable).  The solicitation currently states that five copies of the technical proposal also need to be submitted.  The number of copies of the technical proposal will be decreased to two in an amendment to this solicitation.

Q37.  Table A (attachment J.4) has two pages, but nowhere in the solicitation does it say anything about what page two is for.  It seems to me that in last years solicitation it was used for subcontractors.  It does say workforce qualifications.  Does this page have to be filled out if we do not use subcontractors?

A.  Section 5.4.1 (a) of Section L explains what information is to be included in Table A.  The second page of the table is to be used to demonstrate the offeror’s experience and expertise within the past three (3) years for each functional area that is being proposed.  This page can include information for just the offeror or a combination of the offeror and any team member proposed.  The table needs to be completed even if no team members are being proposed.

Q38.  Section H.1, page 22, We currently perform work at Quantico and we have an office location in Stafford.  Please verify if these locations fall under Zone 2 or in Zone 3.

A.  Both of these areas fall within Zone 2.
 

Q39.  Section H.15, page 34, Automobile insurance is required under this clause; do we need to maintain this type of coverage even though no one in our company owns a company car?

A.  As long as your insurance provides this type of coverage for anything that might be used for business purposes, no additional insurance would be required.  If it is not covered, a rider could be attached to include the additional coverage.

 

Q40,  Section L.2.0, page 73, Instructions for submission of offerors. Do we also need to provide 5 copies of our Volume II Price/Cost Proposal?  Also under this section that only requires one (1) copy (Original) are we to also included the management approach, subcontracting, and past performance information in this copy as well?

A.  One copy of the complete proposal must be provided which includes:  the RFP with any amendment change pages, all attachments, one paper Technical proposal, one paper Cost proposal, one cover letter, CCR Registration Information, and Subcontracting Plan (if applicable).  An additional two copies of the Technical Proposal (including Table A), Management Approach, Subcontracting, and Past Performance must be provided.

Q41.  Section L.2.5, page 73, Do we only need to submit 1 CD-ROM copy with our proposal?

A.  Yes, only one CD-ROM is required.

 

Q42.  Section L.4.2, page 75, Table A, Does this Table need to be included in Volume on printed paper or can we just provide this information electronically?  Also will Table A be provided to us in an excel spreadsheet or should we just create the same table in excel ourselves?

A.  A paper version of Table A is required and also needs to be included on the CD-ROM.  A Word Version of Table A is available on the Seaport e homepage (www.seaport.navy.mil).

 

Q43.  Section L.5.2, page 76, For the Cover Letter, how to we find our where our cognizant DCAA office is located and How do we locate our ACO information?  Is the ACO information provided to us prior to proposal submission?  Also can the CCR registration be included as a separate document or does it have to be on letter head included in the cover letter?

A.  The cognizant DCAA office can be found at www.dcaa.mil.  The cognizant ACO office can be found at www.dcma.mil.  The CCR registration information page can be included as separate document.

 

Q44.  Attachment J.2, Paragraph 4.0 (c) and (d), what will distinguish the end of the evaluation period?  Would this be the end of the base year or will this be designated in the task order?

A.  Contractors will be evaluated after the second full year of performance for CLIN 1000 and 4000 to determine if the Award term criterion has been met.

 

Q45.  Attachment J.2, Paragraph 4.0 (e) defines that the latest a review will be done is the beginning of the fourth base year which is April 2007; does this need to be change as the base year 1 for these new contracts would start in 2006?

A.  The date in paragraph 4.0 (e) of Attachment J.2 will be changed to reflect May 2008.

 

Q46.  Table A, I have read the solicitation and the questions from the old RFP, but I want to confirm that we are only to list one past performance reference with each FA and then we can extrapolate on more within our narrative and the same thing would also go for key personnel for the FAs.  Please advise.  Can we include multiple past performance references and key personnel for the FAs in this spreadsheet.

A.  Only one key individual for each Functional Area proposed should be included in Table A.  Additional experience and expertise should be included in the depth and breadth narrative.

 

Q47.  Are we to address multiple zones if we have subcontractors that will be performing the FA in that zone?

A.  A separate Table A should be included for each zone that is being proposed.

Q48.  The delivery requirements for the proposal  (page 73) state that one complete copy of the RFP with Amendment Change Pages is required to be submitted (including standard form 33 with blocs 12-18 completed).  Will a copy of the RFP be provided that allows for electronic fill in of information? 

A.  A Word version of those areas of the RFP that require fill ins will be provided on the Seaport e homepage (www.seaport.navy.mil).  

Q49.  The CLIN unit price amount requests the highest direct labor cost category for the team proposed.  Therefore, when calculating the MAX amount for CLIN 1000-1999 would the correct formula be (highest direct labor cost [hourly] x 72,000,000)? 

A.  That is the correct formula.

Q50.  Reference page no. 75 of 86, Paragraph 4.3, Evaluation Factor 1.  Under subpara (a), Depth and Breadth, the RFP requires a Table A for each zone proposed.  Under subpara (c), Subcontracting, the RFP requires Table A again.  Please clarify.

A.  Only one Table A is required for each zone that is being proposed.  The depth and breadth information will include the information for both the prime contractor and their team members.

Q51.  Page 73, section 2.5 indicates we need to provide a CD. How many CDs? And what should be on the CD? 

A.  One copy of the CD-ROM needs to be provided which includes a complete copy of your proposal and all attachments.

Q52.  Page 73, 2.1, indicates all attachments are to be included with the RFP. How do we to include Table A as part of the RFP request (attachmentj.4) if we exceed the number of lines in the Table?  Page 74, Section 3.7 states that the solicitation may not be altered.   Do we leave Table A blank here in the RFP and just include the various copies of the Table A in the respective section in the Technical Proposal? 

A.  Table A can not be left blank.  A Word version of Table A will be provided so the information can be entered and the table will not have to be recreated.

Q53.  Page 75, section 4.3 - Does table of contents and acronym lists count in total page counts for technical and cost/price proposal? 

A.  Yes, these would count towards the page limit.

 Q54.  It is my understanding that your office will be issuing an electronic version of Table A.  Is that correct?

A.  Yes, that is correct.

Q55.  We are very interested in participating in the upcoming Rolling Admissions Solicitation (N00178-06-R-4000) for SeaPort. My one question is that of a security issue. Do firms need to have a facility clearance in place in order to participate in this solicitation? If a clearance is required, can the Navy provide sponsorship?

A.  Sponsorship of facility clearances will be handled at the task order level.  The lack of a facility clearance does not prevent you from submitting a proposal for this solicitation.

Q56.  Please define the term "Repetitive High-dollar Value Requirements" as used in paragraph H.10 SAVINGS CLAUSE of the RFP.

A.  The determination if a requirement involves repetitive tasks will be made at the task order level and will be clearly identified in the task order solicitation.  

Q57.  Would NSWCDD consider an offer for the fixed price portion of the Solicitation only, since Commercial Items (FAR Part 12) contractors can only provide fixed price offers?

A.  If a contractor is interested in only proposing for the fixed price CLINs of the solicitation, it must be clearly stated in their proposal.

Q58.  The cover letter is required to identify our cognizant ACO.  What exactly is meant by this?  We have many ACOs for our varied contracts with the government, so I am unsure of what you are looking for here.

A.  The cover letter should identify the cognizant DCMA office for your company.  This information can be found at www.dcma.mil.  

Q59.  Table A past performance refers to web site www.seaport.navy.mil/activities I can’t access this site, please advise.

A.  The correct address is www.seaport.navy.mil/activities/mission_areas.doc.  The address has been corrected in the Word version of Table A that is posted on the homepage.

Q60.  Would it suffice to provide the Government upon contract award with the determination that DCAA has approved and found adequate our accounting system for the accumulation, reporting, and billing of costs under cost reimbursement contracts? 

A.  The Government will initiate requests for pre-award accounting system reviews after receipt of proposals.  If the date that the accounting system was approved by DCAA is known, this information should be included in the offeror’s Cost proposal.

Q61.  Page 2 of 2 in attachment J.4 is to be used for what purpose?

A.  Page 2 of Table A will provide the workforce composition of the offeror (including the prime contractor and any team members) relative to the functional areas and zone(s) being proposed.
 

Q62.  If you are a large business are you required to have subcontractors if you use your own resources on the contracts?

A.  It is not required that team members must be included in an offeror’s proposal.

Q63.  The synopsis for N00178-06-R-4000 indicates that NAVFAC is now a partner to the Navy Virtual SYSCOM, however, we do not see NAVFAC listed in the document defining the mission areas to be supported.  Please clarify whether we can use our NAVFAC experience in bidding on this contract.

A.  NAVFAC is part of the Virtual SYSCOM so experience with NAVFAC can be cited in your proposal if the work performed is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW.

Q64.  My company is interested in becoming a prime contractor during the 2006 Seaport-e Rolling Admissions. Is the process two fold:  1) complete the solicitation (at http://www.seaport.navy.mil/main/home/n0017806R4000Solicitation24Feb06.pdf) and mail 5 hard copies to Seaport e PCO; and 2) create an account at https://auction.seaport.navy.mil/SeaPort/ including all the information from the solicitation. 

The reason that I ask this is to ensure that I complete all the requirements, and to avoid submitting over 500 pages of a solicitation materials when all the information particular to my company is being provided directly to the website.

A.  The solicitation process involves both steps mentioned above.  A completed proposal must be submitted in accordance with the instructions listed in the solicitation and registration must be completed at the Contractor Information Registration site.

Q65.  Please advise where I may locate the fill-ins documents.  Posted documents in pdf format; is there word doc available?   Where may I find updated questions and answers in related in referenced solicitation?

A.  A Word version of the solicitation fill-ins, Attachment J.4 (Table A), and Attachment J.5 (Summary of Fill-Ins) can be found on the Seaport e homepage (www.seaport.navy.mil).  The questions and answers for this solicitation can also be found on the homepage.

Q66.Section L.2.1, page 73 of 86 states:  “A total of six proposal copies are required as follows:

        One Copy - The signed Original proposal copy will include:  RFP with Amendment change pages; all Attachments; one paper Technical Proposal; one paper Cost Proposal; one cover Letter, CCR Registration Information;; and Subcontracting Plan per FAR Part 19 (hard copy).

       Five Copies -  Volume 1 Technical Proposal (includes Technical Capability Depth and Breadth (Table A for each Zone proposed, and written technical description); Management Approach; Subcontracting; and Past Performance.”

Is the “ONE COPY”  to be submitted with a paper copy of Table A data or with a CD-ROM of Table A data?  Are the “FIVE COPIES”  to be submitted with  paper copies of Table A data or with CD-ROMs of Table A data? Our understanding is that only one paper Cost Proposal (Cost/Price Proposal [Volume II]) is to be submitted.  Is Cost Proposal (Cost/Price Proposal [Volume II]  included only in the “ONE COPY” and that no Cost Proposal (Cost/Price Proposal [Volume II]) is to be included in the  “FIVE COPIES” submittal?  Please clarify.

A.  Offerors must provide one copy of the following documents:  the signed original proposal with any amendment change pages; all attachments; one paper technical proposal, one paper cost proposal; one cover letter; CCR Registration Information; and Subcontracting Plan (if applicable).   The CD-ROM must include all of the above documentation.   The solicitation currently states that five copies of the technical proposal also need to be submitted.  The number of copies of the technical proposal will be decreased to two in an amendment to this solicitation.

Q67.  Sections L.2.5 9 (Page 73 of 86) and L.2.4.2 (page 75 of 86) mention a CD-ROM.

Our  understanding is that only Table A data is to be submitted on CD-ROM media.Please clarify.

A.  A complete copy of your proposal including all attachments must be included on the CD-ROM.

Q68.  Section 5.2 Entitled “COVER LETTER”, page 76 of 86 – # 9 mentions that a copy of the Prime Contractors CCR registration information is to be included.  Is the requirement for the CCR information included in the five page cover letter?

A.  The CCR Registration Information is not included in the five page limit.

Q.69  The following language concerning “Zone Presence” consideration is included in separate parts of the RFP.  Please confirm that our understanding that, given the spirit and intent of the RFP as presented in the initial section providing an overview of the SOW, the guidance concerning “Zone Presence” includes contracts for Virtual SYSCOM sites  and field activities within the DOD Community, as well as other Government agencies - not exclusively Navy. 
Table A titled:  PAST PERFORMANCE INFORMATION includes the following footnote,   “*To be considered in one or more of the Seven (7) Zones the offeror must have or had a prime or subcontract or currently have a local office staffed by the prime or a sub in the Zone or Zones.”

SECTION M, para.3.2(c), page 82 of 86 of the RFP includes the following language.  “The Government will first determine if the offeror meets the criteria for presence in each zone proposed on (presence is defined as ‘The offeror has held or currently holds a prime contract or subcontract or currently has a local office manned by the prime or team member in the zone(s) proposed on.’”

The Section titled: ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS,  paragraph 5.6 includes similar language as that provided above ,but also states “For purpose of the qualification requirement, contract means meaningful work performed for one or more of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM sites and field activities in one or more of the Functional Areas.”

                Further,  Section 5.4.1 states “… Experience in these functional  areas may be gained from working with any of the Virtual SYSCOM activities as well as other Government organizations….”

Our understanding is that, given the spirit and intent of the RFP as presented in the initial section providing an overview of the SOW, the guidance concerning “Zone Presence” includes contracts for Navy, Virtual SYSCOMs,  field activities within the DOD Community - not exclusively Navy, as well as other Government agencies. 

Please clarify.

A.  Experience can be cited from any of the Virtual SYSCOM activities as well as any other Government agency.

Q.70.  Section 5.5 entitled “Volume I – Cost/Price Proposal” paragraph (b) states that the Offeror shall provide a breakdown of the derivation of the ceiling unit price…  Does the Government require the same information from each team member?  If so, will the Government accept sealed packages from each team member which would contain their proprietary information?

A.  If the ceiling unit price is being proposed from a team member, the derivation of this rate can be provided either directly to the Government by the team member or included as a sealed package in the prime contractor’s proposal.

Q71.  I have a subcontractor on our Seaport-E bidder team. I would like to know if not having direct government experience eliminates the subcontractor from the bid. They do have lots of commercial past performance in Public Affairs and Multimedia support, the functional area they would bid. How would one make reference to a commercial  past performance contract.

A.  The experience and expertise of the entire team (offeror and all team members) can be used to demonstrate technical depth and breadth for the functional areas being proposed.  Work performed for other than Navy Virtual SYCOM activities could be considered meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.  In limited instances, work outside of DoD may be considered meaningful if it is substantively relevant to SOW and Mission areas.

Q72.  We have the following questions related to this solicitation:

Table A (Attachment J.4)
Where can these tables be found electronically?

Should the “data completed” column be titled “date completed”?

General / Entire Solicitation
Is the entire solicitation available in MS Word format to enable electronic entry of “fill-ins”?
A.  A Word version of Table A and all solicitation fill-ins is available at the Seaport e homepage.  The “Date Completed” column has been corrected on the Word version of the Table.

Q73.  Pages 2 and 3 of 86, Item 1000-1999, Item 4000-4999 and Item7000-7999…Are we required to insert and submit UNIT PRICE and MAX AMOUNT prices for these line items for this Rolling Admissions application process?

A.  Yes,  the single rate included in CLINs 1000, 4000, and 7000 will be used to establish the ceiling amount for the contract. 

Q74.  Page 5, Table…Are we required to submit MAXIMUM AMOUNT prices for CLINs 1000, 4000 and 7000 as a part of our Rolling Admission application?

A. Yes, this chart must be completed.

Q75.  Page 31, Para. H.10 SAVINGS CLAUSE…Are we required to submit reduction percentages in the spaces provided for years 2 through 13 as a part of this application?

A.  Yes, the reduction percentages need to be inserted in clause H.10.

Q76.  Page 32, para. H.10, B. Volume Discount…Are we to fill in anything where there is an asterisk?  Same question for paragraph C. Maximum Pass Through Rates? 

A.  Yes, all areas including an asterisk must be completed.    

Q77.  Page 75, para. 4.3 Evaluation Factor II – Cost/Price Proposal Performance, Evaluation Factor 3:…Are we to submit responses to sub parts (a), (b) and (c)?

A.  Yes, all three of these areas must be addressed in your Cost Proposal.

Q78.  Page 76, Para. 5.2 COVER LETTER, sub para. 5 & 6…How do we find out the name, address and telephone number of our cognizant DCAA office and ACO?

A.  The cognizant DCMA office can be found at www.dcma.mil and the DCAA office can be found at www.dcaa.mil.

Q79.  Page 76, para 5.3.1.1…Are we required to submit proposed labor rates to establish ceiling prices for CLINs 1000, 4000, and 7000 as prescribed in this paragraph?

A.  Yes, these are the rates that will be included in Section B of the solicitation.

Q80.  Page 73, para 2.5…Are we required to submit a copy of our offer on CD-ROM in addition to hard copy(s)?

A.  Yes, a CD-ROM including a copy of your entire proposal is required. 

Q81.  Reference page no. 76 of 86, Paragraph 5.2, Cover Letter, item 9., CCR Data.
 During the last rolling admissions Q&A, the Government stated that the only necessary CCR data were the first three (3) items, i.e., General Information, Corporate Information, and Goods/Services.  Is that still acceptable for this rolling admissions?

A.  The detailed summary from CCR should be provided.  The CCR Registration Information does not count against the five page limit of the cover letter.

Q82.  May we use tables in our Compensation Plan?  This will make portions of the plan clearer.  The instructions in 4.2 do not allow tables in the Compensation Plan.
A.  Flow charts and tables are allowed only in the management approach, cost savings approach, and technical capability section.

Q83.  SECTION and PAGE NUMBER:  Section L 5.4.1 (a) Depth and Breadth (Table A); Page number 77  QUESTION:  In this section it states "Experience in these functional 

areas may be gained from working with any of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM activities as well as other Government organizations."  Our company has meaningful contract experience with the Montana National Guard.  Does the Montana National Guard meet the requirements for 

"other Government organizations" to detail our experience?

A.   Work performed for other than Navy Virtual SYCOM activities could be considered meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.  In limited instances, work outside of DoD may be considered meaningful if it is substantively relevant to SOW and Mission areas.
Q84.  SECTION and PAGE NUMBER:  Section L 1.0 Questions concerning the 

solicitation; Page number 72  QUESTION:  Are the answers to all questions associated with the initial award of the Seaport e Multiple Award Contracts in 2004 and the Rolling 

Admissions conducted in 2005 still valid and applicable to this solicitation (N00178-06-R-4000)?

A.  The reference to the previous questions that were received under the original Seaport e and the first round of Rolling Admissions was an attempt to answer the most commonly asked questions up-front and provide as much information to potential bidders as possible.  Offerors are required to notify the Seaport e Contracting Officer of any inconsistencies.

Q.85  Paragraph 4.3, Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability, (a) Depth and Breadth, Page 75:  Is there a page limit on Table A for a particular zone?  For example, can a Table A submission for Zone 1 consist of more than one “page 1” and/or “page 2”?

A.  Only the two pages for each Table A should be included in your proposal.  Additional information can be provided in the narrative accompanying the table.

Q86.  Paragraph 4.3, Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability, (a) Depth and Breadth  and (c) Subcontracting, Page 75:  Can a single Table A contain prime contractor and teammate information for a particular Zone or are separate Table As required for the prime and subcontractors with experience in a particular Zone as implied in (c) Subcontracting on page 75?

A.  A single Table A for each zone being proposed can include information for both the prime contractor and any team members.

Q87.  Paragraph 4.2, Page 75:  The RFP says that Table A will be provided electronically or on disk.  Is Table A available on the Seaport website?  Can you please provide the URL?

A.  A Word version of Table A is included on the Seaport e homepage (www.seaport.navy.mil).

Q88.  Paragraph 5.4.1 (a) Depth and Breadth, Page 77 and Attachment J.4, Table A:  We have relevant contracts, but not all of them are with the Navy.  In filling out the “Mission Areas For Which Function Was Performed” Column in Table A, can we choose a Mission Area that is equivalent to the work we performed on the cited contract?

A.  Work performed for other than Navy Virtual SYSCOM activities could be considered meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.

Q89.  Paragraph 3.4.1 (a) Depth and Breadth, Page 77 and Attachment J.4, Table A:  Can we make more than one entry for a particular Functional Area on a Table A for a particular zone, providing that we have more than one contract in a particular Functional Area?

A.  Only one entry per functional area should be included in the Table A.  Additional information can be provided in the narrative of your proposal.

Q90.  Paragraph 3.4.1 (a) Depth and Breadth, Page 77 and Attachment J.4, Table A:  Can we delete unused rows in Table A?

A.  Table A should not be altered.  Unused rows should remain blank.

Q91.  Attachment J.4, Table A:  Will the Government provide a clear definition and example of the data expected on Table A, Page 1 of 2, column 6, “Performance Zones To Be Considered In”, and column 7, “Mission Areas For Which Function Was Performed www.seaport.navy.mil/activities”?

A.  For Column 6, the offeror should list which zone is being proposed.  A separate Table A must be submitted for each zone being proposed.  The correct address for a description of the mission areas is www.seaport.navy.mil/activities/mission_areas.doc.

Q92.  Attachment J.4, Table A:  We understand the government’s stand on companies who propose to offer the capabilities of their teammates for any task awards where the company itself does not have an office or employees.  Our company does not intend to offer solely on the capabilities of our teammates.  However in several of the Zones, we have partners who have both offices and employees doing the work described in the SOW.  When a task is awarded to our company for these Zones these employees will then become full time employees of our company and will perform the tasks assigned.  In this case can we propose in zones where we do not have an office and use the capabilities of our partner to show both presence in the zones and capability for compliance?

A.  The presence criteria would be met if one of your proposed team members has an office in that zone.  The information included in Table A for personnel and experience should include a reasonable mix of prime and team member personnel in the zone.  

Q93.  General:  Is a copy of the solicitation available in Microsoft Word format?

A.  A Word version of the solicitation fill-ins is available on the Seaport e homepage.

Q94.  Section G, Clause SEA 5252.216-9122 Level of Effort, p. 17 of 86: Please confirm that this clause applies only to cost-type CLINs (1000-1999, 4000-4999, and 7000-7999).

A.  The Level of Effort applies to cost type orders that would be issued under Seaport e.

Q95.  Section H.10.A, p. 31 of 86: Please confirm that the requirement to provide cost reductions for repetitive, high-dollar value requirements applies only to cost-type CLINs (1000-1999, 4000-4999, and 7000-7999).

A.  The Savings Clause applies to task orders for repetitive high-dollar value requirements with a base period of one year under Items 1000 and 3000 and/or all Award Term Option Items.

Q96.  Section H.10.B, p. 32 of 86: Please confirm that the requirement to provide a volume discount applies only to cost-type CLINs (1000-1999, 4000-4999, and 7000-7999).

A.  The Volume Discount applies to all orders.  If the total value of all task orders funded within a calendar year exceeds the dollar threshold identified in the offeror’s proposal, then the contractor will reduce the amount bid for all task orders issued in the next calendar year by the percentage identified in their proposal.

Q97.  Section H.10.C, p. 32 of 86: Please confirm that the requirement to provide a maximum pass-through rate against any non-ODC CLIN where labor is proposed applies only to cost-type CLINs (1000-1999, 4000-4999, and 7000-7999).

A.  The maximum pass through rate would apply in any order where a subcontractor has been proposed.

Q98.  Section L.4.3 (p. 75 of 86) and L.5.5 (p. 78 of 86): In preparing the Cost/Price Proposal (Volume II), if the offeror proposes to provide services only under the FFP CLINs (i.e., 2000-2999, 5000-5999, and 8000-8999), please confirm that the offeror is required to include only the following elements:

a. Cost Savings Approach


i. How the offeror will achieve the volume discounts (As related to question 2, 3, and 4 above, please confirm that the descriptions of proposed price reductions and minimization of pass-through charge apply only to cost-type CLINs.)


ii. Approaches for additional cost-savings initiatives (Please confirm that Ceiling Unit Price for CLIN 1000 would not apply to an offeror proposing to provide services only under FFP CLINs, since CLIN 1000 is a cost-type CLIN.)

b. Compensation Plan for Professional Employees

c. Statement of electronic invoicing process in place

(Please confirm that DCAA office approval of the offeror's accounting system is required only for offerors proposing services under cost-type CLINs.)

A.  All documentation listed in the solicitation would need to be provided with an offeror’s proposal.  If an offeror is only interested in receiving an award for firm fixed price orders, that must be clearly stated in the offeror’s proposal.  

An approved accounting system is required for all cost type orders.

Q99.  Table A Government POC.  As a subcontractor to a large business working under various Government contracts, the Government POC has not been identified to us by our Prime contractor.  Moreover, as a subcontractor supplying leased labor, the Government POC may not be intimately familiar with our personnel.  In this case, will our Prime Contractor POC suffice for the Table A entry?

A.  It is requested that a Government POC be provided for any effort that is referenced in Table A.

Q100.  Reference page 2, Section B, CLIN 1000-1999.  Will the Unit Price included in any resulting contract be used to price task order proposals?

A.  The labor rates for CLINs 1000, 4000, and 7000 will be used to establish ceiling rates for the basic contract.  Pricing for requirements will occur at the task order level.

Q101.  Reference page 31, clause H.10, Savings Clause.  What is the minimum value that would qualify as “High-dollar Value” for the purpose of this clause? 

A.  The determination of high dollar value and repetitive tasking will be made at the task order level and will be identified in the task order solicitation.

Q102.  Reference page 74, Section L, paragraph 3.10.  Does this requirement apply only to prime contractors that are certified under the 8(a) program, or is this information also required for proposed subcontractors that are certified as 8(a)?

A.  This information applies to prime contractors only.

Q103.  Reference Attachment J.5.  Do the maximum escalation rate and maximum fee/profit rate apply to both Cost-Plus and FFP orders?

A.   The maximum escalation rate applies to all orders.  The maximum profit/fee does not apply to Cost-Plus-Award-Fee orders that would be issued.

Q104.  Referencing Paragraph 2.1 on page 73. It states that you want 1 hard copy of the Proposal response and the entire RFP with the amendment changes for the Technical. One copy of the Price Proposal with just the cover letter, CCR Registration Information  and the Subcontracting Plan plus 5 copies of the Technical and Pricing.  Besides the hard copy referenced above, you stated the we can deliver the proposals electronically does this mean for the 5 additional copies of the proposal do you want 5 CDs for each volume or can we deliver (1) CD  for the Technical and one for the Pricing?

A.  Only one CD-ROM is required which must include your entire proposal submission.  An amendment will be issued decreasing the number of copies of the technical proposal from five to two.

Q105.  Since we are a small business do we have to submit a Subcontracting Plan?

A.  The requirement for a Subcontracting Plan applies only to Large Businesses.

 

Q106.  Can we get a copy of the RFP in MS Word?

A.  A Word version of the solicitation fill-ins, Table A, and Summary of Fill Ins is available at the Seaport e homepage.

Q107.  In what volume should the offeror submit completed Representations and Certifications?

A.  Offerors must complete the Representations and Certifications electronically via the Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA) website at http://orca.bpn.gov.  By submitting a proposal, the offeror is verifying that the online representations and certifications are current, accurate, complete, and applicable to this solicitation.  Any changes from the posted representations and certifications must be included in the chart under FAR 52.204-8 included on page 59 of the solicitation.  A copy of the Representations and Certifications does not need to be included in the proposal.

Q108.  Does the Navy want the complete teaming arrangement for each company or just a listing of all subcontractors that an offeror has teaming arrangements with?

A.  A copy of the teaming arrangement is not required to be submitted with the proposal.  All offerors must address the team members on the Contractor Information Registration site.  If the offeror does not yet have a teaming arrangement in place with a proposed subcontractor, the offeror must address their plans and the schedules for completing this process in the narrative associated with the Subcontracting section of their proposal.

Q109.  In 5.4.1a, the solicitation states “ The offeror shall discuss in detail his experience and expertise identified for each listing found in Table A in the Depth and Breadth narrative.  In light of all the Table A call outs required, can the font on the tables and flow charts be 10pt Times New Roman? Also, does the offeror  have to address all the “call outs” in Table A in the Depth and Breadth narrative? 

A.  The 12-point Times  New Roman font applies to all information except for Table A.  All of the columns in Table A must be completed and additional information can be provided in the Depth and Breadth narrative.

Q110. Page 32, What is the Navy Seaport-e definition of volume discount?

A.  A volume discount is offered to the Government when a contractor has received a certain threshold of task orders within a calendar year.  The value of this threshold is provided in the offeror’s proposal.  Once that threshold has been reached, the contractor agrees to reduce the amount that is bid on all task orders in the following calendar year by a certain percentage that is included in the contractor’s proposal.  This percentage will be applied to all task orders proposed during this period.
 
Q111. Please clarify Fee versus Pass Through?

A.  The fee that a prime contractor applies to the subcontracted effort is one of the elements that is included in the pass through rate.  The other element of the pass through is any indirect costs that are applied to the subcontractor (such as G&A, material handling, program management, subcontract management, invoice processing, quality assurance, overhead, and other burdens and mark-ups).
 
Q112. Page 78, Are small business required to submit a subcontracting plan narrative if they are going to prime?

A.  A Subcontracting Plan is only required if the prime contractor is a Large Business.
 
Q113. Page 78, Are small businesses required to submit SF 294 with the proposal submission?

A.  SF 294’s are only apply to Large Businesses.
 
Q114. Page 78, Are copies of the teaming agreement required with the proposal submission?

A.  Copies of teaming arrangements are not required with proposal submission.  The team members must be addressed at the Contractor Registration Information site and if the arrangements are not in place, the offeror must address their plans and schedules for completing the process.
 
Q115. Page 8, Is 3.9 Functional Area requirement for hardware or software or both?

A.  Both of the requirements can be covered in this Functional Area.

Q116.  Standard Form 33,  Block #15A - What do code and facility mean?

A.  Offerors need to insert their CAGE code and Facility Code in these blocks.

Q117.  Page 34, H.15 - Required Insurance. Do we need to provide proof of insurance with the proposal package? If so, how, as an appendix?

A.  Proof of insurance does not need to be submitted with an offeror’s proposal.

Q118.  Page 72 HQ L-2-0009 and Page 82, 4.0 - Are small businesses applying as a Prime required to submit a small business subcontracting plan? On page 72 of 86 under HQ L-2-0009, it is stated that only large businesses are required to submit a small business subcontracting plan. But on page 82 of 86 under 4.0 Factor Rating Scale, Management Approach, C. Subcontracting / Teaming Arrangements, it is stated that the requirement applies to all businesses.

A.  Small Business Subcontracting Plans are only required if the prime contractor is a large business.  For the Contractor Information Registration site and in the technical proposal, all companies must address any team members that are being proposed and the status of teaming arrangements with the companies.

Q119.  Cover Letter, #5, what is the cognizant DCAA office? How do we determine our cognizant DCAA office?

A.  The cognizant DCAA office can be found at www.dcaa.mil.

Q120.  Cover Letter, #6, what is the cognizant ACO? How do we determine our cognizant ACO?

A. The ACO is the cognizant DCMA office for the prime contractor.  This information can be found at www.dcma.mil.

Q121.  Page 34, Section H.15 - Required Insurance.  Do we need to provide proof of insurance for sub-contractors with the proposal package? If so, how, as an appendix?

A.  Proof of insurance for subcontractors does not need to be submitted with the prime contractor’s proposal.

Q122.  Do we need a waiver as a small business to the DCAA/ACO accounting requirements?

A.  All offerors, regardless of business size, need to provide the cognizant DCAA and DCMA office information for their company.  All companies must have a DCAA approved accounting system prior to receiving a cost type order under Seaport e.

Q123.  Which specific items from the CCR registration are we required to report on our cover letter?

A. A copy of the CCR print out can be included with your proposal.  The CCR information does not count against the 5 page limit of the cover letter.

Q124.  If we’re exempt from DCAA / ACO requirements as a prime since we’re a small business, what if we have a sub that is a large business? Would the large business sub-contractor be required to comply with the DCAA / ACO requirements? If so, how does that need to be addressed in our response?

A.  All prime contractors are subject to the DCAA and DCMA requirements.  Offerors do not need to provide the DCAA and DCMA information for subcontractors on their team.

Q125.  If an 8A firm has done substantial work in both the government and commercial market spaces, is it possible/permissible to submit commercial past performances for the SEAPORT-E response?  If so, do we supply the name of the commercial institution in place of the government agency in table A?

A.  Only the Government work should be reflected in Table A.

Q126.  How should we physically incorporate the CCR registration information in the Cover Letter, Item 9, Section 5.2, in additional instructions to offerors?  A printout from the web site contains graphical elements and runs over a page for the requested information. May we re-type the required information in a table?

A.  A copy of the printout can be attached to your cover letter.  The CCR information is not counted against the five page limit of the cover letter.

Q127.  May we use tables in the cover letter?

A.  Tables should not be included in the cover letter.

Q128.  DO you want the offer letter required by 5.2 on letterhead or plain paper?  Our letterhead incorporates a graphical logo.

A.  The cover letter can be submitted on your company’s letterhead paper.

Q129.  Table A Workforce Qualification– The title of the second column is “Degree/ Functional Area Proposed”.  Should “Degree/” be moved to the next column?

A.  In this column, the offeror can put the degree and the number of the Functional Area.

 

Q130.  Table A  Past Perf. Info - Are you limited to one contract per functional area?

A.  Only one contract number should be included in the table.  Additional information can be provided in the narrative.

 

Q131.  Table A  Past Perf. Info – Can we identify the Prime or Subcontractor in the “Contract No.” column?

A.  The contract number should be included in that column.  Additional information can be provided in the narrative.

Q132.  RFP Section L, p.76-77 - 5.3 Standard Form 33, 5.3.1 Section B, 5.3.2 Section H, 5.3.3 Section K, 5.3.4 Attachment J.5  The RFP states "All fill-ins to be completed by offeror..."

 The RFP is in a PDF format.  We have tried to see if there were fields that we could type in when clicking on the PDF document, but it didn't work.  Considering that we are to provide both hard and electronic copies, how are we supposed to fill it in?

A.  A Word version of the solicitation fill-ins is available on the Seaport e homepage (www.seaport.navy.mil).

Q133.  Will an offeror be limited to performance in the particular functional areas addressed in their proposal after award of a Seaport-e contract?  In other words, if an offeror addressed functional areas A, B, C in their proposal, but a Task Order comes out that addresses functional areas X, Y, Z, would the contractor still be able to compete for that work?

A.  When a contractor receives a contract award, they will be eligible to propose on all functional areas included in the Statement of Work.

Q134.  Zoning (PAGE 79 of 86): As per the zoning scheme , we are based in Capitol Region. We find that many functional areas for which we can offer our services are required for Agencies from other zones. This may limit our options. Can the eligibility criterion be modified to establish additional  Zone presence as and when we get qualified?

A.  Additional zones can only be added when a Rolling Admissions is conducted.  The zones that your company would receive at the time of contract award would be in effect until your company was able to apply for additional zone consideration during a future Seaport e Rolling Admissions procurement.
 

Q135.  Mission Areas (http://www.seaport.navy.mil/activities/mission_areas.doc):
While we are addressing our functional area capabilities in a zone, do we get limited by Mission area requirements within the zone?

A.  Your company would not be limited by Mission Area Requirements.

Q136.   Section C  3 Requirements ( Page 7/8 of 86 ): In Section 3.6, for which we have the necessary qualifications, It is said that the software development processes shall be as minimum assessed at CMM Level 3 and the Government may specify lower/higher standards in individual task orders . We are assessed at CMMI Level 2. But we have delivered to our customers at CMMI 
level 3 and higher Standards. Are there any limitations on the offerors?

A.  The CMM level and other information pertaining to this particular Functional Area would be addressed at the task order level.  The task order solicitation would provide the required standards and any other pertinent information.

 

Q137.  Past Performance Qualifications (Page 78 and 81 of 86 ) We have performed for both Federal and Corporate Agencies. We have retained the customers right through. The services we have rendered for Corporates like Verizon and others, are very relevant and highlight our capabilities.  The note itself says that Government can choose to get additional sources of references on its own . The way we read the RFP, we understand that only Government references can be given. Can it be modified?

A.  Past performance information should be provided for experience gained from working with any of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM activities or any other Government organization.  Work performed for other than the Navy Virtual SYSCOM activities could be meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.  In limited instances, work outside of DoD may be considered meaningful if it is substantively relevant to the SOW and Mission areas.

Q138.  Our team is a SDVOSB that is currently in the process of obtaining  8(a) certification from the SBA.  If the 8(a) certification is not finalized by the time proposals are submitted on March 24th, is there a process (such as at the beginning of each award term period) that would allow us to update our status (if awarded a contract) to include 8(a) once it has been approved by the SBA?

A.  Business size status will be re-evaluated at the end of the base period and the Award Term periods.  Any change in status would be reflected at the time that the award term option would be exercised.

Q139.  In addition to the three required items of information, is it permissible to include a company logo on the CD cover?

A.  A logo can be included on the CD-ROM’s cover.

Q140.  Are the cover letter (and CCR printout) plus the RFP copy to be included at the beginning of the Volume I Technical Proposal or in a separate volume/notebook?

A.  The cover letter and RFP should be included as a separate volume or notebook.

Q141.  If the direct labor rate to be used for calculating the Ceiling Unit Price is from a subcontractor, is it acceptable for the prime contractor to show in this section of the proposal all of the appropriate calculations (such as pass through rate) using the subcontractor’s fully burdened labor rate and have the subcontractor provide a sealed package which delineates how the fully burdened labor rate (direct labor, OH and fee) was derived?

A. Yes, this would be acceptable.

Q142.  Refer Page 79 , Section 5.5 (b) of solicitation refers to ceiling unit price for CLIN 1000. “The offeror shall provide a breakdown of the derivation of the ceiling unit price, including the method for developing the direct labor rate (what labor category for what company), the indirect burdens applied, the escalation used, and the fee rate.”We envision some task orders may require contractor employees located at Government premises. Other task orders may require, contractor employees at contractor facilities. Should we propose two different rates for the above?

A.  Only one rate should be proposed.  This rate should reflect the highest (direct cost) labor category within the team proposed.

Q143.  Page 75, Section 4.3: Do you have to include a hard copy of Table A in the technical proposal or will a reference in the Technical Proposal to Table A on the CD suffice? 

A.   Hard copies of Table A need to be included in the technical proposal.

 

Q144.  Page 19, 5.5 (c), what information is the evaluators looking for in a compensation plan? Salary only? Or benefits? By pay grade?

A.  The compensation plan should include the proposed salaries and fringe benefits for professional employees that would be working under this contract.  The plan should include the supporting data that was used (such as national and regional surveys and studies)  to establish the compensation structure.

Q145.  Page 77 states that “Depth and Breadth” section contains a limit of Table A plus 10 pages.  What is the page limit for Table A? Please confirm that the pages allowed for Table A are not included in the 10 page limit for this section.

A.  Each Table A should consist of the two pages that were provided in the solicitation.  The ten page limit is for the narrative that will accompany the Table A.

 

Q146.  Based on the document “Questions and Answers for Solicitation N00178-06-R-4000”, under question Q6 the Government’s response is that ‘The CCR Registration is not part of the 5-page limit.’  Given this guidance and the requirement on Page 76, para. 5.2, #9 that the CCR Registration is required as a component of the Cover Letter, should offerors include the CCR in the cover letter (which now makes the limit 7 pages) as well as a second time as a separate item in the Original Signed Proposal Copy (Page 73, 2.1)?

A.  The CCR information only needs to be provided one time and can be included as a component of the Cover Letter.

 

Q147.   Based on the document “Questions and Answers for Solicitation N00178-06-R-4000”, under question Q1 the Government has posted Table on the SeaPort e website as a word document.   In the Solicitation, page 75, para 4.2 section Table A, says that on the CD, Table A will be in excel format and to be named with the file extension .xls.  Should I assume that the .doc format is replacing the.xls format?

A.  The .doc format has replaced the .xls format.

 

Q148.  “Questions and Answers for Solicitation N00178-06-R-4000”, under question Q34.  When putting Table A onto the CD-ROM how many files should we have, one separate file for each zone (7 .doc files) or incorporate all the zones into one file? If multiple files, what is the government’s desire regarding a naming convention?

A.  A separate file should be included for each Table A that is being submitted and can be entitled “Table A, Zone 1”, “Table A, Zone 2”, etc.

Q149. Page 77, Section 5.4.1 (a). If a small business has performed worked under the functional areas must it relate to work listed under the mission areas?

A.  Table A and the narrative should address the experience that the offeror has in the functional areas that are being proposed.
 

Q150. Page 77, Section 5.4.1 (a). Is a small business allowed to use commercial past performance when proving capabilities in the multiple functional areas?

A.  Past performance information should be provided for experience gained from working with any of the NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM activities or any other Government organization.  Work performed for other than the Navy Virtual SYSCOM activities could be meaningful if it is equivalent to the work described in the Seaport e SOW and performed for the DoD.  In limited instances, work outside of DoD may be considered meaningful if it is substantively relevant to the SOW and Mission areas.
 

Q151. Page 10, Section 5 and Page 33, Section H.13.  Does a small business need to hold any level of Facility Clearance to bid or any section of this RFP. If so, what level of clearance must they have?

A.  A Facility Clearance is not required in order to submit a proposal under this solicitation.  Facility Clearances will be handled at the task order level.

 

Q152. Page 79, NOTE. Is it a requirement for small businesses to have had a DCAA audit of their accounting systems prior to response to this RFP? If so, if a small business goes through an audit prior to the response date of the RFP, would that suffice?

A.  If DCAA has conducted an accounting system review of a company, the offeror needs to include that date in its proposal submission.  If an offeror does not have a DCAA approved accounting system, that information needs to be stated in their proposal.  It does not prevent a company from submitting a proposal in response to this solicitation.

 

Q153. Page 79, Section 5.6. Must a small business have previous work performed on a contract with NAVSEA or Virtual SYSCOM to be eligible to bid on this solicitation?

A.  The definition of presence is either having or had a prime or subcontract with one of the Navy activities or having an office in the zone being proposed that is staffed by either the prime contractor or one of its team members.  The presence criteria can therefore be met by having a local office in the zone that is being proposed even if the prime contractor does not have a contract with a Navy activity.

Q154.  Does the page limit for the technical and cost proposals include a title page? Page 76 – 5.2 

A.  Yes, title pages are included in the page limitations.

Q155.  Does the response require the submission of one hard copy along with five electronic (disk) copies?  Or will 6 paper copies suffice? Page 73 – 2.5 

A.  An amendment is being issued to change the number of copies for the technical proposal from five to two.  One complete copy of the proposal includes the entire solicitation, any amendment change pages, attachments, one paper copy of the Technical proposal, one paper copy of the Cost Proposal, one cover letter, the CCR registration, and Subcontracting Plan (if applicable).  In addition, two paper copies of the Technical Proposal must be provided.  An entire copy of the proposal shall be included on the CD-ROM.

Q156.  Does each electronic copy need to be on a separate disk? Page 73 – 2.5 

A.  Only one CD-ROM containing the entire proposal should be submitted.

Q157.  Does that tables (Table A) that need to be included in the technical proposal for each zone count as a page against the limit? Page 75, 4.3 

A.  The ten page limit must include the narrative associated with Table A.  This limit is in effect regardless of the number of zones and Table A’s that are being submitted.

Q158.  If we are in a designated small business category, is it necessary to submit a Small Business Subcontracting Plan as stated on page 72 HQ L-2-0009? 

A.  No, the requirement for a Subcontracting Plan only applies to Large businesses.

Q159.   If a Prime Contractor does not have a local office in a particular zone, but one or more of its teammates does, is that Prime eligible to be considered for that zone?

A.  The presence criteria would be met if a team member has an office in the zone that is being proposed.

Q160.   We are currently a Small Business concern, but have submitted an 8(a) certification application.  We are expecting to be awarded the 8(a) status within the next few months.  Can we reclassify as an 8(a) concern at the time of 8(a) award, or must we wait until the end of the base period?

A.  You would need to wait until the end of the base period when size status will be re-evaluated.

Q161.  Do answers given to last years’ RFP questions apply to this RFP?

A.   The reference to the previous questions that were received under the original Seaport e and the first round of Rolling Admissions was an attempt to answer the most commonly asked questions up-front and provide as much information to potential bidders as possible.  Offerors are required to notify the Seaport e Contracting Officer of any inconsistencies.

Q162.   Page 16 – Types of Orders Under IDIQ type contracts  paragraph (c) states;

Under this form, if the performance is considered satisfactory by the Government the fixed fee is payable at the expiration of the agreed-upon period and upon contractor certification that the level of effort specified in the order has been expended in performing the contract work.  Should one conclude that zero fee/profit will be awarded if performance is considered unsatisfactory by the Government or will there be partial fee under this form?

A.  Under a Cost Plus Fixed Fee (term) type of order, if not all of the agreed to level of effort is provided, a fee adjustment is calculated (see clause SEA 5252.216-9122 Level of Effort (DEC 2000) on page 17 of the solicitation).  If all of the level of effort is provided, there is no adjustment to fee.

Q163.   Page 29 – During Rolling Admission

The Government reserves the right to determine whether it would be appropriate to announce a new competition for the purpose of adding additional IDIQ holders.   Can an existing IDIQ holder add or delete a team member during Rolling Admission  Periods without notifying the contracting officer 45 or 90 days in advance of the proposed substitution?

A.  Team members can be added at any time with the approval of the Seaport e Contracting Officer.  The 45 day and 90 day notifications are required for substituting personnel at the task order level and would need to include the Task Order Contracting Officer in the notification.

Q164.  Will the competition for task orders for small business work be done at a small business level or 8(a), HubZone, SDB levels.

A.  The determination for set aside status for a requirement will be made at the task order level and will clearly be identified in the task order solicitation.

Q165.   Will the Government evaluate Small Business Status at the task level or at the time of proposal submission that resulted in the award of the SeaPort Enhanced IDIQ contract award?

A.  Business size status will be based on the status at the time of proposal submission that resulted in the award of the Seaport Enhanced IDIQ contract award.  A contractor’s size status will remain in effect through the base period of their Seaport e contract.

Q166.  Volume I, Section (c) of the Technical Proposal on Page 78 outlines the requirements for a subcontracting plan narrative.  Referring to the March 2005 Q&A (http://www.seaport.navy.mil/main/home/expansion/RFP_QA_25_March_2005.doc) , the answer to question 235 stated “Small businesses are not required to submit subcontracting plans.”  

 Would it be correct to continue to assume that a SDVOSB would not be required to provide in its proposal a response to Volume I, Section (c) of the Technical Proposal?

A.  A Subcontracting Plan is only required from Large Businesses.  However, all offerors must address the subcontracting element included on page 78 of the solicitation.  This includes addressing the team members in the Contractor Information Registration site and if teaming agreements are not in place, addressing plans and schedules for accomplishing this process.

Q167.  Page 76 of 86; paragraph 5.3.1.1:
It appears that one of our team members will have the highest fully burdened labor rate which involves proprietary data.  What procedures should be followed to ensure that this data gets linked up with our proposal upon arrival at Dahlgren? And is it OK that the Ceiling Unit Price for CLIN 1000 is omitted from the CD (electronic media version) because we do not have access to that proprietary data?

A.  You would need to include the fully burdened rate in CLIN 1000.  The rates included for CLINs 4000 and 7000 must be based on this rate.  The team member can either provide you with a sealed envelope with the derivation of their rate that you can include in your proposal submission or the team member can provide this information directly to the Government at the address and time specified in the solicitation.

Q168.  Page 76, 5.3.1.1 says that the offeror must propose labor rates to establish ceiling prices for CLINs 1000, 4000, 7000 for the "highest (direct cost) labor category within the team proposed."  First, does this mean that we are only proposing one rate for the purposes of this proposal?  Could a subcontractor's rate be used if they are the highest?  If we're providing data that spans more than one zone, should there still only be one rate or should the highest rate per zone be submitted?

A.  Only one rate will be proposed for CLIN 1000.  The rates proposed for CLINs 4000 and 7000 should be based on the CLIN 1000 rate with escalation.  If the highest rate would come from one of the team members, that rate can be used in the proposal.  The single highest rate should be used regardless of the number of zones that are being proposed.

Q169.  Where can I find a "Fill-in" Microsoft Word version of SF 33?  Page 1 of the RFP was not included in the Fill-in version of the RFP.

A.  A Word version of the SF33 is not available.

Q170.  With regards to the Rolling Admissions Seaport-e expansion, has consideration been given to extending the due date for submissions? Given that the government is outwardly seeking small business participation, it is my feeling that many small businesses, including my own, could well use additional time to meet all submission requirements.

A.  The proposal due date of 24 March 2006 at 2:00 will not be extended.

Q171.  Are non-NAVSEA projects for exact functional areas outlined in the SeaPort solicitation that were performed for DoD and other government agencies permitted as Past Performance?

A.  Work performed for DoD and other Government organizations may be used for Past Performance.

Q172.  As a professional services firm, we have the ability and have performed these functions in the past for many different locations – we have professionals around the country and/or our professionals travel to the client site.  Are we allowed to submit the same contracts for multiple zones as Past Performance?

A.  The same contract can be referenced on Table A for multiple zones to demonstrate Past Performance.  Additional information would need to be provided in the narrative to demonstrate the offeror’s depth and breadth.

